ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 23, 2010
8:14 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representati ve Paul Seaton, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Peggy W1 son
Representati ve Max G uenberg
Representati ve Pete Petersen

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Craig Johnson

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 291

"An Act relating to the issuance of state-guaranteed revenue
bonds by the Alaska Housing Finance Corporation to finance
nortgages for qualifying veterans; and providing for an
effective date.”

- MOVED QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 289

"An Act authorizing state agencies to pay private |egal fees and
costs incurred by persons exonerated of alleged Al aska Executive
Branch Ethics Act violations; allowing certain public officers
and former public officers to accept state paynents to offset
private legal fees and costs related to defending against an
Al aska Executive Branch Ethics Act conplaint; and creating
certain exceptions to Alaska Executive Branch Ethics Act
l[imtations on the use of state resources to provide or pay for
transportation of spouses and children of the governor and the
| i eut enant governor."

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 291

SHORT TITLE: GUARANTEED REVENUE BONDS FOR VETERANS
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNCR

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- February 23, 2010



01/ 19/ 10 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 10 (H MV, STA, FIN

02/ 02/ 10 (H M.V AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

02/ 02/ 10 (H Heard & Held

02/ 02/ 10 (H) M NUTE( MLV)

02/ 04/ 10 (H M.V AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

02/ 04/ 10 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

02/ 04/ 10 (H) M NUTE( MLV)

02/ 05/ 10 (H M.V RPT 4DP 1NR

02/ 05/ 10 (H DP: LYNN, T.WLSON, BUCH GATTO
02/ 05/ 10 (H NR  KAWASAKI

02/ 23/ 10 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 289

SHORT TITLE: EXEC ETHI CS: LEGAL FEES/ FAM LY TRAVEL
SPONSOR(s) : GRUENBERG

01/ 15/ 10 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 15/ 10

01/ 19/ 10 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 10 (H STA, JUD, FIN

02/ 23/ 10 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

BRYAN BUTCHER, Director

Governnent Relations & Public Affairs

Al aska Housi ng Fi nance Corporation (AHFC)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 291 on behalf of the House
Rul es Comm ttee, sponsor by request of the governor.

JOE DUBLER, Finance Director

Bonds

Al aska Housi ng Fi nance Corporation (AHFC

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
291.

LAURI E HOLTE, Residential Lending Oficer

Urban and Resi dential Loan Prograns

Al aska Housi ng Fi nance Corporation (AHFC

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
291.

JUDY BOCKMON, Assistant Attorney Ceneral/State Ethics Attorney
Opi ni ons, Appeals, & Ethics

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -2- February 23, 2010



Cvil Division (Anchorage)

Depart nent of Law

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
289.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8. 14: 55 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Conmttee
neeting to order at 8:14 a.m Representati ves Seaton

G uenberg, Petersen, and Lynn were present at the call to order

Representative WIlson arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 291- GUARANTEED REVENUE BONDS FOR VETERANS

8:15:40 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced the first order of business was HOUSE BILL
NO. 291, "An Act relating to the issuance of state-guaranteed
revenue bonds by the Alaska Housing Finance Corporation to
finance nortgages for qualifying veterans; and providing for an
effective date.”

8:16:19 AM

BRYAN BUTCHER, Director, Governnment Relations & Public Affairs
Al aska Housing Finance Corporation (AHFC), presented HB 291 on
behal f of the House Rules Comm ttee, sponsor by request of the
gover nor. He stated that the proposed |egislation would place
on the 2010 general election ballot a vote asking voters to
approve an additional $600 mllion of state-guaranteed bonds to
be issued by AHFC for the veterans' program

MR. BUTCHER related his understanding that "the veterans'
program’ was created in the U S. Congress, and there was a snall
wi ndow during which states could take advantage of that program
Al aska was one of only five states to sign up, he said. The
other four states were: Oregon, California, Texas, and
W sconsi n. He indicated that prior to 1977, in order to
qualify, a veteran could not have been out of service for nore
than 30 years. He said the veterans' program is the only one
for which AHFC needs a general obligation pledge of the state in
order to sell bonds.

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE - 3- February 23, 2010



MR. BUTCHER said AHFC has worked with the U S. Congress for 15
years to lift the restrictions and open the program up to nore
vet erans. He indicated the reason for the lengthy effort was
because only five states were involved. He stated, "W thought
there mght be interest in having all the states give this

program for their veterans. Unfortunately, that's not the way
nost of Congress saw it." The requirenent of 1977 was lifted
from federal law, but only through an agreenment that AHFC woul d
be limted in selling only $10 million in bonds a year. He

remarked that when considering honmes that cost $300, 000-
$400, 000, $10 nmillion does not go far. After the restrictions
were lifted, there were nore eligible veterans in the state, but
t here was not much noney.

MR. BUTCHER reported that two years ago, the limt on AHFC was
increased to $100 million, and now the program fl ourishes. He
cont i nued:

And at this point, as we ran nunbers, we realized that
2002 was the last time we had it go to a vote of the
peopl e. It was $500 nmillion authorized. Over 70
percent of the state voted to have it done. And once
we realized we now had a nore brisk |loan portfolio, we
realized that in all likelihood, sonetinme in 2011 we
were going to run out of funds for the program So,
if we didn't get it on the general election ballot
this year, we nmay have to shut the program down well
before we get to a 2012 general el ection.

8:20: 07 AM

CHAIR LYNN said he retired from the mlitary in 1976, and he
asked if he would be eligible today for the program

8:20:22 AM

MR. BUTCHER answered no, because currently a veteran cannot have
been out of active duty for nore than 25 years.

CHAI R LYNN asked what the rationale was behind choosing 25 years

as a cut-off point. He remarked, "A veteran is a veteran is a
veteran."
8:21: 04 AM

MR. BUTCHER reenphasized the challenges of working with U'S
Congress as one out of only five states that adopted such a

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- February 23, 2010



program He explained that U S. Congress was concerned that tax
exenpt bonds woul d take noney out of the treasury. He said the
program from 1977 ended, and he said the chair of the federa

Ways and Means Comrittee told him he believes that everything
t hat sunsets should do so. M. Butcher said that sentinment is
frustrating those trying to keep this successful program
runni ng. To illustrate that success, M. Butcher relayed that
Standard & Poor's reported a few weeks ago that AHFC s | ast bond
issuance for its veterans' program had the |owest delinquency
rate of any of the prograns across the country. He indicated
that the veterans' programis AHFC s npbst successful program

CHAI R LYNN r esponded, " under st and t hat , but

phil osophically it's discrimnating against a whole bunch of
veterans, and that discrimnation really is age discrimnation
t 0o."

8:22:40 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he is a Vietnam War veteran. He
asked if a veteran is only allowed this loan once in a lifetine.

8:23:02 AM

JOE DUBLER, Finance Director, Bonds, Alaska Housing Finance
Corporation (AHFC), answered no. He said a veteran may
participate nultiple tines, but may have only one |oan out at a
tine.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG decl ared a conflict of interest related
to his forthcomng |ine of questioning.

CHAI R LYNN decl ared a conflict of interest.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that "this definition" is in federal
law, not state law, therefore, the commttee has no authority
over it, but may comrent on it.

8:.24.25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if AHFC could run a program at
the state level that was identical to the federal program but

wi t hout [the 25-year] requirenent.

8:25:12 AM

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE - 5- February 23, 2010



MR. BUTCHER answered that the federal program allows AHFC to
sell tax exenpt bonds, which in turn allows AHFC to obtain a
| ower interest rate than it can through its "general program”
Anyone who did not qualify wunder federal law would not be
eligible for tax exenmpt bonds, so AHFC would have to sel

t axabl e bonds.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked, "So, is there federal noney
involved in this, or just tax exenpt status?"

MR. BUTCHER r esponded, "Just tax exenpt status."”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that was not <clear from the
i nformati on provided. He said he had been under the inpression
that there was a "federal guarantee or federal noney."

8: 26: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the bonds are retired or are
cycled into AHFC for rei ssuance of additional nortgage.

8:26:33 AM

MR. BUTCHER responded that the paynents AHFC gets from borrowers
are used to pay off debt. He expl ained that under federal tax
law and with certain restrictions, to the extent AHFC pays off
debt, it is able to reissue debt. He continued:

When we do that, for the purposes of state |aw and the
voters' authorization under the guaranteed program we
reduce the amount of the voter authorization by the
refunded anount, as well. In other words, we're not
doubl e counting for the state purposes. W do for the
feds because they allow it, but for the state we're
very conservative and do not.

8:27:24 AM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON stated his understanding that although
AHFC can reissue, it has to go back to voters to get approval to

guarantee the additional anount.

MR. DUBLER confirned that AHFC cannot issue general obligation
bonds w t hout the approval of the voters.

8:28: 03 AM

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE - 6- February 23, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked M. Butcher if he foresees AHFC
having a simlar problem with U S. Congress regarding a sunset
of the current federal |aw

8:28: 24 AM

VR. BUTCHER answered that the five states involved are
continually working with U S. Congress. Currently, AHFC is
working to get the 25-year |imt lifted so that the program
would apply to all veterans and to obtain permssion to have
refinancing "as something that would qualify in the program"”
He credited Congressman Bill Thomas from California for his work
on this issue.

8:29:28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he would |ike an explanation of how
the issue of active duty relates to [the Al aska National Guard].

8: 30: 08 AM

LAURI E HOLTE, Residential Lending Oficer, Uban and Residentia
Loan Prograns, Al aska Housing Finance Corporation (AHFC), stated
that if a [National] Guard nmenber has been called to active duty
by the President for duty other than training, then hel/she
becomes eligible for the program upon conpletion of that
obl i gati on. Being called to duty by the State of Alaska is not
consi dered federal duty, she specified.

8:31: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered his understanding that active
Nat i onal Guard nenbers, having conpleted their initial period of
duty, which would entitle them to honorable discharge or
rel ease, would qualify. He asked if they would remain eligible
if they went off active duty status.

M5. HOLTI answered yes.
8:32: 48 AM

MR. DUBLER, in response to Representative WIson, said if a
borrower does not pay back his/her nortgage, the corporation has
opti ons. In  nost cases, there wuld be a Veterans
Adm ni stration or Feder al Housi ng Adm ni stration (FHA)
guarantee, and AHFC woul d be able to receive fromthose entities
the difference between what AFHC is able to resell the house for

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- February 23, 2010



and what the borrower still owes on the nortgage. In the md-
to late-'80s, the value of the homes being foreclosed was
smaller than the balance on the nortgages; however, currently
there is not a big decline in hone value, so AHFC does not
anticipate that problemin the current environnent. In response
to a followup coment from Representative WIson, he confirned
that bonds are paid off wusing the paynents received from
vet erans.

8:34:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG shared that he participated in the Navy
Reserve O ficers' Training Corps (ROTC) program from which he
graduated in 1965. He noted that those in mlitary academ es
are qualified, and he stated his assunption that is because
peopl e attending those academ es are considered on active duty.
He offered his wunderstanding that ROIC participants are also
considered on active duty during their college years, and he
asked if any consideration had been nmade to include those in the
ROTC.

8: 36: 38 AM

MR. BUTCHER said he would bring that issue up during the next
conference call between the five aforenentioned states and get
back to Representative G uenberg with a response.

CHAIR LYNN offered his understanding that ROIC participants do
not qualify as being on active duty.

8:38: 02 AM

M5. HOLTI, in response to Representative Petersen, said a
qualified veteran could use the program loan for a duplex,
triplex, or fourplex, as long as one unit is occupied by the
bor r ower .

8:38: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN offered his wunderstand that this is a
good time to have a bond sale, especially considering Al aska's

"credit worthiness." He said he supports HB 291 and thinks a
majority of Alaskans wll vote to continue supporting this
program

8:39: 22 AM

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE - 8- February 23, 2010



REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON questioned if the l|anguage in bil
shoul d be changed to reflect that the veteran who borrows npney
may do so for a multi-unit dwelling. She said, "So, what we're
really saying is we're helping themstart a business.”

8:40: 10 AM

MR. DUBLER responded that the vast mmjority of loans given in
this program are for single-famly hones. The definition of
residence for this purpose is "less than a fourplex". He stated

his understanding that that |anguage is found also in federa
I aw. He said AHFC s first-tine honebuyer program includes the
same stipul ation. He concluded, "So, it's a federal issue, |
bel i eve."

CHAIR LYNN proffered that sonetinmes the ability to get incone
fromthe other units helps a person qualify for a hone | oan.

MR DUBLER confirned that is correct.
8:41: 46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if there is any state subsidy in
this program

MR. DUBLER replied yes. He relayed that the current interest
rate is 4.625 percent.

8:42:24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if there would be an expl anation
of the proposed ballot neasure in the el ection panphlet.

MR. BUTCHER said he believes there was an explanation in the
2002 el ection information.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG said he wants a definition of
"veterans" and "residences" provided to voters.

8:45: 13 AM
MR. BUTCHER sai d AHFC coul d provi de those definitions.

8:45:36 AM

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE - 9- February 23, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON stated that even though this is related
to a federal program the State of Alaska will be funding it
and, therefore, wll be responsible.

MR. BUTCHER responded that that is correct. He clarified that
there are federal restrictions. Federal |law allows the state to
choose whether to participate in the program

8:46: 18 AM

CHAIR LYNN, after ascertaining that there was no one else who
wi shed to testify, closed public testinony.

8:46: 39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to report HB 291 out of committee
with individual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes. There being no objection, HB 291 was reported out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conmttee.

The conmm ttee took an at-ease from8:47:02 AMto 8:50: 04 AM

HB 289- EXEC ETHI CS: LEGAL FEES/ FAM LY TRAVEL

8: 50: 06 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced the final order of business was HOUSE BILL
NO. 289, "An Act authorizing state agencies to pay private |ega
fees and costs incurred by persons exonerated of alleged Al aska
Executive Branch Ethics Act violations; allowing certain public
officers and forner public officers to accept state paynents to
of fset private |egal fees and costs related to defendi ng agai nst
an Al aska Executive Branch Ethics Act conplaint; and creating
certain exceptions to Alaska Executive Branch Ethics Act
l[imtations on the use of state resources to provide or pay for
transportation of spouses and children of the governor and the
| i eut enant governor."

8:50: 25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON noved to adopt the proposed committee
substitute (CS) for HB 289, Version 26-LS1304\C, Wayne, 2/22/10,
as a work draft.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON obj ect ed for di scussion purposes.

CHAIR LYNN stated his intent to work from Versi on C.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 10- February 23, 2010



8:51:25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON renoved his objection. There being no
further objection, Version C was before the conmttee.

8:51:39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, in explanation of the function of the
proposed |egislation, paraphrased the first sentence of the
sponsor statenent, which read as follows [original punctuation
provi ded] :

HB 289 sets forth in statute the substance of the
Attorney Ceneral's proposed regulations establishing
standards for (1) reinbursenent of Ilegal fees and
costs for any executive branch enployees accused of
ethical violations, and (2) paynent of travel expenses
for the famlies of only the governor and |ieutenant
gover nor.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d the reason he becane involved with
HB 289 is that he believes these issues should be dealt with by
the legislative branch, not the executive branch - particularly
the attorney general, who is appointed by the governor and
determ nes whether the governor's famly or people in his own
departnment can get reinbursed by the state for costs and fees
resulting frombeing charged with an ethics violation

8:54:23 AM

CHAIR LYNN said, "So, this 1is basically to prevent the
appearance of conflict of interest."”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG r esponded yes.
8: 55: 58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, regarding legal fees, said he was
concerned that there is language that could be interpreted as
all owi ng reinbursenent even if a person was not exonerated, if
he/ she sinply paid the noney back. He said he does not think it
is fair for someone who is quilty to get back his/her full
attorney's fees and costs. In response to a question from Chair
Lynn, Representative Guenberg confirnmed his intent is for only
t hose who have been exonerated to be reinbursed. He said the
termexonerated is defined on page 4, lines 12-18, of Version C.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- February 23, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE = GRUENBERG pointed out t hat there is a
recommendation for corrective action and one for preventative
action. He explained that corrective action is something that
would occur when a person has been found gquilty, whereas
preventative action would be taken in a situation in which a
person was not found guilty, yet the situation should be avoided
in the future.

8:59: 28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to page 4, |ine 4,
of Version C, which includes "former public officer"”. He said
he wanted to ensure that a former public officer cannot cone
back much later and get his/her costs and fees. He then
directed attention to page 4, lines 26-28, of Version C, which

read as fol |l ows:

APPLI CABI LI TY. AS 39.52.470, enacted by sec. 4 of
this Act, applies only to conplaints wunder AS
39.52.310 - 39.52.390 that are initiated or filed on
or after the effective date of this Act.

9:00: 40 AM

REPRESENTATIVE GRUENBERG said a third change that was
incorporated into Version C is in |language on page 4, beginning
on line [19], which read as foll ows:

(2) "fees and <costs of private |egal
representation” neans reasonable fees and related
costs of legal representation that are necessarily
incurred in defense against the allegations in the
conpl ai nt and may i ncl ude f ees for servi ces
customarily perforned by an attorney but delegated to
and perfornmed by a person working under t he
supervision of an attorney licensed to practice in the
st at e.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG explained that that would preclude
soneone from attenpting to get noney for "a fishing expedition
or all kinds of things that aren't related to it." Furthernore,
the person would have to be reasonable from an attorney's point
of view

9:02: 28 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- February 23, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the fourth change incorporated
into Version C would meke the process of naking clains |ess
cunbersone. He said theoretically, a person could be paid noney
and then found guilty, or sonething equivalent, and then the
agency would have to conme back to recoup the nopney, and the
person could be judgnent proof. He indicated that the change in
Version C would | eave the application for costs and fees to the
end, so that it is done once wth no recouping "or anything like

that." He explained that this change is the reason that Version
Cis nmuch shorter in length than the original bill version.
9:04: 08 AM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON asked for «clarification regarding
recommendati ons for preventative action.

9: 04: 55 AM

JUDY BOCKMON, Assistant Attorney General/State Ethics Attorney,
Opi ni ons, Appeal s, & Ethics, G vil D vision (Anchorage),
Department of Law, echoed Representative Guenberg's previous
statenment that corrective action recognizes that there has been
sonme sort of violation, while exoneration would include those
situations where there has been no violation, even if it was
decided that preventative action was necessary. She said an
exanpl e of preventative action nay be to distance the enployee
from "the situation,” which would be done through the ethics
supervi sor of the agency involved.

9:07: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if those actions that may have the
appearance of inpropriety would be a violation or would "flow
under preventative action."”

9:09: 52 AM

M5. BOCKMON explained that when the departnment reviews Ethics
Act matters, it |looks at the actual situation. She said there
is a regulation that states that the appearance of inpropriety
is not a violation, so the departnment would not base a violation
on appearances alone. A decision is nade as to whether there is
an actual violation or not.

9:11: 39 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 13- February 23, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON of fered his understanding that there is a
statutory requirenment not to have appearance of inpropriety. He
stated, "I'm just wanting to get clarified that what we're
saying here is that if you are guilty of generating the
appearance of inpropriety, the appearance of a conflict by the
executive officer's action, that that's going to be treated as
an exoneration or it wll be treated as a reconmmendation for
preventative action.”

9:12: 35 AM

VB. BOCKMON reiterated that judgnents are not nade by
appear ances. She said, "W encourage enployees to step up and
report situations in which they mght potentially violate the
Ethics Act.” For exanple, soneone mght be assigned to review

grant proposals and see that the nane on one of the submttals
is that of a famly nmenber. At that point, the reviewer should
stop, report the problem and be renoved fromthe situation. |If
the reviewer continues his/her participation in the review of
the application submtted by the famly nenber, that would be a
violation and there would be no exoneration. She concl uded,
"It's hard to envision a situation where the result of the
i nvestigation turns on just the appearance of the situation.”

9:14: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN offered a hypothetical exanple of an
executive who submts paperwork for reinbursenent of travel
expenses for a famly nenber who was not required to be on the
trip, but withdraws the submi ssion when it is pointed out to
himher that this was not sonething for which there should be
rei mbur senent. He asked if that is an exanple of preventative
action.

M5. BOCKMON i ndicated that the answer would depend upon whet her

or not there had been an ethics conplaint. |[If there had been an
ethics conplaint, then the situation would involve corrective
action. Prior to there being a conplaint, if the officer

submtted the request for reinbursenent and then realized it was
i nappropriate and took action to wthdraw the request, that
would be viewed as a person "stepping up" to neet his/her
obligations, having recognized there was a problem She said
t hat behavi or shoul d be encouraged.

9:17: 38 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- February 23, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked Ms. Bocknobn to confirmthat if the
af orenent i oned executive from the hypot het i cal exanpl e
voluntarily withdrew the request for reinbursenent, then there
woul d be no viol ation.

M5. BOCKMON replied that she is uncertain that that would be the
ultimate concl usion. She explained, "W could say it's a
vi ol ation, but the person took appropriate action to correct the
situation and that addresses it absent there being a conplaint
to follow through on."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON requested a review of the sectional
analysis [included in the commttee packet].

9:19:50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG paraphrased the first part of the
sectional analysis, which read as follows [original punctuation
provi ded] :

Sec. 1. Deletes definition of “for partisan political
purposes.” This definition section is noved to section
3 on page 3, lines 22-27.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG conti nued as fol |l ows:

It's permtted if ... the person who is transported
with the governor or |ieutenant governor reinburses
the state for the actual cost or if the cost is not
reasonably calculable for the fair market value of the
person's transportation. Alternatively, if they are
not reinbursing the state, the standard is whether the
person's attendance is a benefit to the state. And
that is a ... general concept inpossible to determ ne
with just a facile definition. So, what we give here
- and this is pretty nuch given from the regul ations
this tinme - ... it's presuned. In other words, the
presunption is that it's okay, and the burden of proof
woul d shift to the prosecution, to the people who were
bringing the conplaint, to show that it wasn't a
benefit to the state.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said there are four situations in which
a person's attendance is considered a benefit to the state, and
they are listed in |anguage on page 3, lines 12-21, of Version
C, [Section 3(g)(2)(A)-(D)], which read as foll ows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- February 23, 2010



(A) the person's attendance at the event is
required for official action of the state;

(B) the event is state-sponsored and the
person's attendance is customary;

(C the person is attending as an official
representative of the state; or

(D) the person is invited by the event's
sponsor bef ore t he transportation occurs, t he
invitation and the person's attendance are custonmary,
the event is related to issues inportant to the state,
and the governor or |ieutenant governor attend.

9:23:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked Representative Guenberg for an
exanpl e of when a child or spouse would be required for official
action of the state.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG deferred to Ms. Bocknon.
CHAI R LYNN asked if there is an age range for "child".

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG answered that it could be any child
including an adult child. He deferred to M. Bocknon for
further comment.

9:24:17 AM

M5. BOCKMON, regarding Representative Seaton's question, said
there are a lot of situations in ethics that are not foreseen.
She said she cannot offer a concrete exanple; however, she
stated, "It seenmed to us when we were drafting the regul ations
that we should allow for this."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he is not expressing opposition, but
he just does not understand when the state would require a
spouse or child of the governor for an official action of the
st at e.

9:25:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d the |anguage was included because
it was in regulation and "seemed |ike a reasonable proposal."”
He recollected that when Lady Bird Johnson was in the Wite
House, she was in charge of certain highway beautification
proj ects.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 16- February 23, 2010



CHAIR LYNN said he thinks many First Ladies have taken on causes
wi t hout being in an official capacity.

9:26:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN said in sonme instances the governor and
i eutenant governor are invited to numerous cerenonial events,
and if they are invited to nore than one event happening
si mul taneously, they may need to assign a famly nenber to go in
t heir stead.

9:27:21 AM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON said it should be acceptable for the
governor's spouse to join hinfher on a trip to a conmunity in
Al aska, because that really pleases the public.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON reiterated that he is not opposing the
| anguage, but rather is trying to understand through exanple
what subparagraph (A) neans. He asked if the l|anguage in
Section 3(9)(2)(A)-(C [text provided previously] is addressing
travel independent of the |ieutenant governor or governor.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG answered yes. He said subparagraph (D)
requires the attendance of the governor or |ieutenant governor
whi | e subparagraphs (A)-(C could include independent travel.

9:32: 36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CRUENBERG, in response to Chair Lynn, said the
bill |anguage does not include parents, siblings, or in-laws of
t he executive.

9:33: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  SEATON asked M. Bocknon to address  his
previously stated question regarding the neaning of "as an
official representative of the state,” and he asked what it
woul d take to designate sonmeone as such

9:34: 02 AM

M5. BOCKMON prefaced her answer by noting that trying to draft
standards to address this issue was difficult. She said the
desire was to draft |anguage "that was narrow and related to
circunstances where there was an identifiable benefit to the
state to have the person there." She said the use of the word

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- February 23, 2010



"official™ [in Section 3(g)(2)(C] refers to a situation in
which the governor or |ieutenant governor cannot attend a
function and designates his/her spouse, for exanple, to attend.
Furthernore, the termalso applies to the context in which first
|adies and first gentlenen take on causes, such as education

which are inportant to the state.

9:35:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that there were two U S.
Presidents - one a bachelor and the other a w dower - who
depended on young relatives to represent them

CHAIR LYNN asked if the proposed legislation would allow for a
simlar situation in which a governor of Al aska did not have a
spouse and needed a relative to serve as a host.

9:37:29 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG answer ed no. He asked Ms. Bocknon if

she would have a problem with an anendnent to include such a
possibility.

9:37: 50 AM

M5. BOCKMON responded that that would be a policy choice for the
| egi sl ature. She said she would have no objection, assum ng
there were no legal issues presented in the [|anguage of an
anmendnent . She said, "There are situations in which we as a

state and the citizens would expect there to be a host/hostess
situation perhaps, and it wouldn't be necessarily inappropriate
for the state to decide as a matter of policy that it would
cover such a person.™

CHAI R LYNN suggested that that anendnent could be considered in
the next commttee of referral.

9:39:17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if there would be sone kind of
public declaration that soneone is acting in the official
capacity [of the governor or |ieutenant governor].

M5. BOCKMON said she does not believe that is what was
contenplated under the regulation. She stated, "These
situations are all so specific to the circunstances and

every tinme you think that you know what the range is, there's

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- February 23, 2010



something new." She said if soneone is serving as an honorary
chair of a commttee, she expects there would have been sone
sort of declaration nade, whereas in a situation where soneone
is going to fill in for a governor unable to attend a function
she assunes that would be the result of a decision made in the
governor's office.

9:41: 26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he thinks the presunptions being nade
shoul d be clarified.

9:42: 41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated his intent as sponsor that "if
sonebody's an official representative, there nust be sonething
in the official records to do that." He asked Ms. Bocknon if
his stated intent would be sufficient or if there needs to be an
amendnent .

M5. BOCKMON answered that there is always a record kept of
sonmeone traveling; however, she recomended that the |egislature
would need to clarify if it wanted a record of any declaration
t hat someone woul d be acting as an official representative.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG enphasi zed that that is his intent. He
opi ned that the best practice would be to put it in witing.

9:45: 35 AM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON warned that the ternms "spouse" and
"“child" have already been specified in subsection (g), so "we're
going to have to adjust it there also.™

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG responded that his intent is for an
amendnent to be nade to address that issue in the next conmttee
of referral. He asked Representative Seaton if he would be nore
confortable with the addition of a definition of "official
desi gnation".

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON answer ed yes.

9:46: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. W LSON reenphasi zed the need for clarity.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- February 23, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG offered to work on amendments to bring
back to the conmttee.

CHAIR LYNN said he thinks "that mght be better.” He explained
that he would like to anmend the bill to be "as conplete as
possi bl e" before noving it out of commttee. He opined that HB
289 is an inportant bill.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would get input from the bil
drafter and Ms. Bocknmon when wor ki ng on the anendnents.

CHAIR LYNN suggested that a nenorandum could be required for
certain "special cases.”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he thinks [appointnments of
official representatives of the state] should at Ileast be in
writing.

9:48: 10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to subparagraph (B) in
Section 3, which read:

(B) the event is state-sponsored and the person's
attendance i s customary;

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if that neans a certain event or
woul d include a "simlar" event.

CHAIR LYNN offered his wunderstanding that customary neans
sonet hi ng that has been done one or nore tines before.

9:49: 36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG i ndi cated he thinks the |anguage woul d
include simlar events. He offered an exanple.

9:50:16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON concurred, and he reconmended adding "at
simlar events" to subparagraph (B)

9:50: 33 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG invited nore input from the conmttee,

and he said he could have the anmendnents ready by the next
conmi ttee neeting.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- February 23, 2010



9:50: 55 AM

CHAIR LYNN, after ascertaining there was no one else who w shed
to testify, closed public testinony.

9:51: 06 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that HB 289 was hel d over.

9:53: 51 AM

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Cormmittee neeting was adjourned at 9:54
a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- February 23, 2010



